CONSTITUTION OF THE DE ANZA COLLEGE ACADEMIC SENATE

PREAMBLE

De Anza College Mission:

De Anza College provides an academically rich, multicultural learning environment that challenges students of every background to develop their intellect, character and abilities; to realize their goals; and to be socially responsible leaders in their communities, the nation and the world. The college engages students in creative work that demonstrates the knowledge, skills and attitudes contained within the college's Institutional Core Competencies:

- Communication and expression
- Information literacy
- Physical/mental wellness and personal responsibility
- Civic capacity for global, cultural, social and environmental justice
- Critical thinking

As authorized under Title 5 of the California Code of Regulation Administrative Code Section 53201 (Subchapter A), we, the members of the faculty of De Anza College, are uniting to form the De Anza College Academic Senate. We are inspired by a common desire to assist in vigorously promoting the quality of community college education by whatever words and actions that are appropriate and necessary.

We the Faculty of De Anza College do ordain and establish this Constitution for the Academic Senate. As authorized pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulation, Section <u>53201</u>, we declare our unswerving fidelity to the De Anza College values of Integrity, Innovation, Equity, the Development of Human Capacity, and a commitment to Civic Engagement and Social Justice.

We the Faculty therefore reaffirm our goals of eliminating institutional bias and racism, promoting a culture of inclusion, valuing and embracing the intellectual contributions of a diverse spectrum of people and cultures, and sharing our dedication to our Institutional Core Competencies.

Commented [RS1]: in the hope of increasing participation in serving as officer, perhaps consider president-elect? not sure if one year is too long for this. term limits seem like a good way of promoting broader participation.

Amended May 2006 1 of 12

We also believe that the Academic Senate is essential for promoting the quality of community college education and realizing the fullest educational and professional potential of each member of the faculty, and for furthering the aims and goals of De Anza College. Towards these endeavors we pledge our mutual support and cooperation.

ARTICLE I. NAME

This organization shall be known as the De Anza College Academic Senate, hereinafter referred to in this document as the Academic Senate, or the Senate.

ARTICLE II. PURPOSE AND FUNCTION

Section A. Purpose

The purpose and function of the Academic Senate shall be to give the De Anza College faculty a formal and effective procedure for participating in the formation of college and district policies on academic and professional matters. (Reference: Title 5, Subchapter 2, Section 53201 and AB 1725.)

Section B. Responsibilities

With regard to academic and professional matters, the Foothill-De Anza Board of Trustees either jointly develop and agree or rely primarily upon the recommendations of the Academic Senate.

Therefore, it shall be the responsibility of the Academic Senate to be primarily concerned with and to make recommendations to the appropriate college and district administrators and management teams, the Board of Trustees, and State educational agencies on such local and statewide community college educational issues as curriculum, degree and certificate requirements, grading policies, educational program development, standards regarding student preparation and success, governance structures of the college, accreditation, faculty professional development activities, policies for program review, processes for institutional planning and budget development, and other academic and professional matters as mutually agreed upon between the Board and the Academic Senate.

Section C. Code of Conduct

The Academic Senate promotes an environment that values respect, openness, fairness, dissent, and integrity. Executive Committee members shall adhere to the Academic Senate Code of Conduct. The failure to adhere to the Code of Conduct will result in providing the basis for the removal of any member of the Executive Committee.

The Academic Senate of De Anza College considers the following principles essential to its mission:

- Mutual respect between officers, senators, faculty, students, and staff;
- Compliance with the Academic Senate Constitution and By-laws;
- Compliance with De Anza College and FHDA District Policies.

The goal of the Code of Conduct is to establish a set of principles and practices that will set parameters and provide guidance and direction for Academic Senate conduct and decision-making. The specifics of the Code of Conduct are outlined in the By-laws of the Academic Senate.

Section D. Powers

Board Policy 2223 describes which of the items in Section 2 B above are to be joint development items and which are primary reliance. Curriculum, General Education and program specific degree and certificate requirement, grading policies, standard regarding student preparation and success and policies for faculty professional development are considered primary reliance issues for the Academic Senate. Degree and certificate units, educational program development, governance structures, accreditation, policies for program review and processes for institutional planning and budget development are considered joint development items.

The designation of Board members or administrative officers as provided in Title 5 Section 53204, and Board policy 2223 shall not preclude the representatives of the Academic Senate from meeting with, or appearing before, the Board of Trustees with respect to the views, recommendations, or proposals of the Senate at a regular or special meeting of the Board. (Reference: Title 5, Subchapter 2, Sections 53203 and 53204.)

Section E. Definitions

"Faculty" means those employees (full and part-time) of De Anza College who are employed in positions that are not designated as supervisory, classified, or management, and for which minimum qualifications for hire are specified by the Board of Governors. (Reference: Title 5, Subchapter 2, Section 53200, paragraph (a).)

ARTICLE III. ACADEMIC SENATE

Section A. Regular Membership

Membership in the Academic Senate shall consist of all faculty (full and part-time) at De Anza College. (Reference: Title 5, Subchapter 2, Section 53200)

Section B. Meetings

- 1. General and special meetings of the Academic Senate shall be called, with at least 48 hours of notice, by:
 - a. the President, or
 - b. the President, upon receiving a written petition signed by ten percent of the total Academic Senate membership, or
 - c. the Executive Committee, who can:
 - i. petition the President to call a meeting, or
 - ii. by a majority vote, call a meeting.
- Final executive and legislative power shall be assumed by the membership at any Academic Senate meeting convened to discuss and act on specific agenda items presented at that meeting.

Commented [CK2]: The Senate shall conduct its business in a collaborative and inclusive manner. At any point in a meeting, any member can ask that the body use Robert's Rules of Order. When using Robert's Rules of order, members of the Senate are referred to the easy to understand guide prepared by the PTA: https://www.pta.org/docs/default-source/files/training/course-tools/president/english/roberts-

rules-of-order-basics

Commented [SK3R2]: The Senate shall conduct its business in a collaborative and inclusive manner following

Robert's Rule of Order. At any point in a meeting, any member can ask that the body adapt Robert's Rules of Order. When using Robert's Rules of order, members of the Senate are referred to the easy to understand guide prepared by the PTA

Commented [SK4R2]: adapt/modify

3. The current edition of Robert's Rules of Order-Newly Revised shall govern the organization Senate's transaction and decision-making procedures at all meetings provided that these are consistent with this Constitution and any special rules that this organization the Senate may adopt.

ARTICLE IV. DUES

Voluntary dues for the Academic Senate shall be established for all members by the Executive Committee and approved by a majority vote of either the membership present at a general Academic Senate meeting, or by a majority of members voting in a supervised campus ballot.

ARTICLE V. OFFICERS

Section A. Positions

The officers of this organization the Academic Senate shall be: a President, a Vice-President, and an Executive Secretary. These officers shall also serve as the officers of the Executive Committee.

Section B. Terms of Office

The President of this organization the Academic Senate shall serve for a term of two?one years and may be re-elected for consecutive terms. The Vice-President of this organization the Senate shall serve for a term of two years and may be re-elected for consecutive terms, but shall retain the option to reduce the term one year by running for and being elected President. The Executive Secretary shall serve for a term of three years and may be re-elected for consecutive terms. Newly-elected

Section C. Removal from Office

In accordance with the Academic Senate By-laws, any officer may be removed from office by the vote of two-thirds of the Academic Senate membership casting a written affirmative ballot. for either

- 1. violation of the Academic Senate Code of Conduct and/or
- 2. after the adoption of a Resolution of No Confidence.

Removal requires the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Academic Senate membership casting an electronic affirmative ballot.

Section D. Vacancies

Commented [5]: Does the president serve 1 or 2 years? Should we change so Pres and VP are elected in different years? Should we cap the number of consecutive terms or years someone can serve as an Officer? I'm not advocating for overall term limits, but a cap on serving consecutively may allow more voices to be heard and encourage participation from more faculty

Commented [SL6R5]: The president term is currently 1 year. Changing it to 2 years would make it alternating terms.

VOTE ON WHETHER PRESIDENT ELECTED TERM SHALL BE ONE OR TWO YEARS

Commented [7]: Why is the term for executive secretary set at 3 years and not 2?

Commented [SL8R7]: Because the FSAs to Disciplines list update requires a significant amount of time to learn and to complete, it was decided that a 3 year cycle was better for the Secretary Treasurer position.

https://www.deanza.edu/gov/academicsenate/courses_disci_fsa.html

If the office of President becomes vacant for any reason, the Vice President shall assume the responsibilities of the President for the remainder of the academic term. If the office of Vice President or Executive Secretary becomes vacant for any reason, the Executive Committee will appoint a member of the Executive Committee to fill the vacancy until elections occur in May-June.

ARTICLE VI. THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Section A. Composition

- I. An Academic Senate Executive Committee, hereinafter referred to in this document as the Executive Committee, shall be established and shall consist of the officers of the Academic Senate, the Faculty Division Representatives, two At-Large Part-Time Faculty Representatives, the Diversity Coordinator the Director of Equity, Social Justice, and Multicultural Education, and the Curriculum Committee faculty
- The voting members of the Executive Committee are the Vice President, Executive Secretary, and the Senators. The President votes only in the case of a tie. All voting members of the Executive Committee may make and/or amend motions or resolutions.
- 3. There are four methods of voting:
 - a. by voice vote;
 - b. by electronic vote;
 - c. by voting placards, which shall be distributed only to Senators;
 - d. by roll call vote.

Each Officer shall ensure that no non eligible member of the Executive Committee is allowed to vote [30][30][31]

Section B. Senators

In addition to the Curriculum Committee faculty Co-Chair being Senators, every instructional division and other division/area with faculty assigned to it shall be entitled to two Senators. Senators represent the interests of the faculty in their division/area at Executive Committee meetings.

There shall be two elected At-Large Part-Time Faculty Senators who represent part-time faculty interests for the campus as a whole.

1. Terms of Office

Each Division Senator shall serve for a term of two years and can be re-elected for consecutive terms. The Director of Equity, Social Justice, and Multicultural Education and the Curriculum Committee faculty Co-Chair serve for the duration of their tenure in

Commented [CK9]: DASB will appoint two voting members to the Academic Senate

KAREN: I BELIEVE THIS PROPOSED REVISED CHANGE WAS WITHDRAWN??

Commented [DS10R9]: Seconded -Kimberly Lam

Commented [RS11R9]: i support this and look forward to the discussion/debate and vote (as a nonvoting member, i wish i could vote for this)

Commented [RM12R9]: Applied Technologies has for many years had its own membership due to its unique makeup and needs. The department also has a history of being moved from division to division. We would like this to continue

Commented [KC13R9]: Rick, please see the proposal added to Article VI. Section B.1. comments

Formatted: Strikethrough, Pattern: Clear (Custom Color(RGB(244,204,204))), Highlight

Commented [14]: Does Curriculum always have 2 co-chairs and are both VM of Senate? What is the total number of VM? Are the Officers VM?

Commented [KC15R14]: VM for Curriculum: 1 (either chair or co-chair). Officers are VM but as President, I only vote if there is a tie.

Commented [MP16]: VI. A. 3. c. by raising of hands or by raising of placards distributed to Senators only

Commented [KC17]: Based upon the proposal submitted by embedded/programs counselors, this proposed wording:

and other division/area with faculty assigned to it—and the group known as "embedded/program counselors" (which includes counselors assigned to areas OUTSIDE of Counseling and Disability Support Programs and Services, aka DSPS, including but not limited to: Student Success & Retention Services.

International Students Program, English Performance Success – including Adult Ed consortium, Math Performance Success, Men of Color

College Promise / Outreach, Career

Training, Veterans, REACH, Biological, Health & Environmental Sciences), shall be entitled to two Senators. Senators represent the interests of the faculty in their division/group at Executive Committee meetings.

Commented [18]: Can division reps serve 1 year?

Commented [KC19R18]: Yes, it often happens that Divisions (again ideally with an open and transparent process inclusive of all faculty) have rotations of faculty reps, usually because of faculty availability/willingness to serve (subbing in for colleagues on PDL, etc)

those positions. Each division is responsible for the procedures for electing Senators. It is suggested that the terms of the division's Senators be staggered. Newly elected Senators generally take office at the first meeting of the Executive Committee each fall quarter.

Each At-Large Part-Time Faculty Senator shall serve for a term of two years and can serve on the Executive Committee for consecutive terms. Re-election to another term is not automatic. An election will be held at the end of the two-year term. The terms of the Senators will be staggered. Newly elected Senators generally take office at the first meeting of the Executive Committee each fall quarter.

Each At-Large Part-Time Faculty Senator shall receive a quarterly stipend.

2. Attendance

овј овј

Section C. Associate Membership

Associate membership status on the Executive Committee may be granted to De Anza College faculty, administrative, management, students, and classified professionals, as well as student personnel by the Executive Committee or the Academic Senate via a simple majority vote of the membership attending a meeting of either organization at which such a motion is made. Non-faculty associate members may make or amend motions/resolutions, but shall not have the right to hold office or to vote. Faculty associate members may make or amend motions/resolutions, but shall not have the right to vote at Executive Committee meetings.

Section D. Meetings

Executive Committee meetings shall be held under the following provisions:

- The Executive Committee shall meet at least once each month during the school year.
- The agenda for any meeting shall be distributed at least 72 working hours before the meeting. Anyone may submit an item for consideration and action to the Executive Board.
- All Executive Committee meetings shall be opened to all members of the Academic Senate and the college community.
- A simple majority of the Executive Committee members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting.
- 5. A simple majority of votes cast by the members present at any Executive Committee meeting shall be required to carry a motion or resolution.
- The current edition of Robert's Rules of Order-Newly Revised shall govern the Executive Committee's transaction and decision-making procedures at all

Commented [20]: What if a senator is replaced in Winter or Spring?

Commented [KC21R20]: Not sure if the answer to Cheryl's question above applies to this question as well--?

Commented [22]: Some senators clearly ignore this.

Commented [EW23R22]: It is expected that the officers follow up with anyone who misses more than 1 or 2 meetings per quarter (spelled out in By-laws, I believe)

Commented [DS24]: Wondering rationale for this strikethrough - was this in order to allow for the student representative to have a voting seat officially?

Commented [SO25R24]: Agreed. Allowing for Students to make or amend motions/resolutions feels like a good way to leave the door open for input from your associate/advisory members. I don't see the necessity to reduce their role further.

Commented [KC26R24]: Please see the amendment proposed by Cynthia in Article VI. A. to add that DASB will appoint two voting members.

Commented [SO27]: Classified Professionals

Commented [CK28]: VD6 I suggest it be removed, since it is redundant

Commented [CK29R28]: redundant with III B3

Commented [30]: Are meetings not open to the general public?

meetings provided that these are consistent with this Constitution and any special rules that the Executive Committee may adopt.

Section E. Closed Meetings of the Executive Committee

A closed meeting of the Executive may be called only when personnel issues are to be discussed with at least 48 hours notice by:

- 1. the President, or
- the President, upon receiving a petition signed by two-thirds of the Executive Committee membership, or
- an affirmative vote by two thirds of the Executive Committee membership taken at a regular or special meeting of the Executive Committee.

Section F. Removal from Office

Any Senator may be removed from office for violation of the Academic Senate Code of Conduct. If the Senator was elected At Large, removal requires the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Academic Senate membership casting an electronic affirmative ballot. If the Senator was selected, removal requires the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Academic Senate Executive Committee.

Any Member or Associate Member of the Executive Committee may be removed from office for violation of the Academic Senate Code of Conduct. Removal requires the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Academic Senate Executive Committee.

No Member of the Executive Committee may be removed from office without a finding of "clear and convincing" evidence of a violation of the Academic Senate Code of Conduct.

ARTICLE VII. ELECTIONS

Section A. Election Time

Elections of Officers and At-Large Part-Time Senators shall take place in mid-May each year. Elections of Senators should take place within each division in June.

Section B. The Election of Officers

 Nominating Committee. By the sixth week of the winter quarter, the President shall form, from among the members of the Executive Committee, a three-person Nominating Committee, one of whom shall be elected Chairperson immediately by the group. The sole purpose of this ad-hoc committee is to secure candidates

for the office of President, Vice-President and Executive Secretary when due for election. As per tradition, the current President and Vice President will not serve as members of the Nominating Committee. Notification of election dates and distribution of candidate statements shall occur at least one week prior to the election dates.

- Candidates. Any full or part-time faculty may run for Academic Senate Office. Candidates for office shall submit a candidate statement to the Nominating Committee Chairperson.
- 3. Voting. The election of a candidate or passage of Senate initiatives will be determined by a simple majority vote of the Academic Senate membership voting. In all elections, each full-time faculty member shall be entitled to one (1) vote. In all elections, each part-time faculty member with rehire preference shall be entitled to one (1) vote. Part-time faculty without rehire preference cannot vote.
- 4. Eligibility. The Chairperson of the Nominating Committee may take nominations from the floor for any of the offices that will be vacant if there is an Academic Senate meeting convened for this purpose. Any member of the Academic Senate (full or part-time) shall be eligible for election to any position on the Executive Committee.

Section C. The Election of Senators

- 1. Division Selection of Senators
 - a. Senators needed to start a new term on the Executive Committee shall be elected via an open, transparent and inclusive process, determined by faculty consensus, and announced by the Dean/Director of each area. elected by each division prior to the end of the Spring Quarter. These elections shall be conducted by the division's present Senators.
 - b. For any senatorial vacancy on the Executive Committee due to a resignation or a removal of a Senator by vote of the Division, the Division concerned, upon being notified by the President shall elect a faculty replacement.

 Vacancies for Senator positions must be publicized by the Dean/supervisor to the entire division/area. Faculty consensus must determine the open, transparent, and inclusive process used in the division/area to fill vacant Senator position(s).
 - c. Senators elected to fill a vacancy caused by resignation or other reason will assume office at the next Executive Committee meeting after they have been elected.

2. Eligibility.

- a. Any faculty member (full or part-time (with re-employment preference)) in a particular division shall be eligible for the office of Senator for that division.
- b. Senators shall be eligible for reelection to consecutive terms

Commented [31]: Should we limit the number of consecutive terms? Again, not overall term limits, but maybe require a 2 year break every 6 years to keep AS from becoming stagnant and impenetrable

Commented [MP32]: Remove "with re-employment preference)" from VII C. 2.

c. Nothing stated or implied in this Constitution shall prohibit any Senator from running for any of the Academic Senate officer positions described in Article V.

Section D. The Election of At-Large Part-Time Faculty Senators

1. Election of At-Large Part-Time Faculty Senators

Ideally The process described in this section shall should occur simultaneously with the process for securing candidates for the offices of President, Vice-President and Executive Secretary as outlined above in Article VII section 2.

- a. At the beginning of Spring Quarter of each year the nominating committee will broadcast a call for candidates for At-Large Part-Time Faculty Senators.
- b. Interested candidates will submit a brief candidate statement. Notification of election dates and distribution of candidate statements shall occur at least one week prior to the election dates.
- c. Voting. Each faculty member shall be entitled to vote for one candidate. The candidate receiving the most votes will be elected.
- d. For any vacancy on the Executive Committee due to a resignation of an At-Large Part-Time Faculty Senator, a call for candidates will be broadcast. Any interested candidates will submit a brief candidate statement, and the Executive Committee will appoint a Senator for the remainder of the term of office.

2. Eligibility

- a. Any part-time faculty member with re-employment preference (in any division) shall be eligible for the positions of the At-Large Part-Time Faculty Senators.
- At-Large Part-Time Faculty Senators shall be eligible for re-election to consecutive terms.
- Any At-Large Part-Time Faculty Senator may not concurrently serve as a Division Senator

3. Removal from Office

In accordance with the Academic Senate By-Laws, the At-Large Part-Time Faculty Reps may be removed from office by the vote of two-thirds of the Academic Senate membership casting a written affirmative ballot.

ARTICLE VIII. COMMITTEES

Commented [33]: Should we limit the number of consecutive terms for P/T reps also?

The Academic Senate shall have such and as many committees as are necessary to fulfill the purposes and functions of this organization as outlined in pertinent sections of this Constitution.

Section A. Sponsorship Establishment of Committees

The Executive Committee shall sponsor establish committees as needed.

Section B. Committee Membership

Any member of the Academic Senate shall be eligible to serve on any committee excepting such committees where part-time faculty participation is excluded by law or the Agreement between the Foothill-De Anza Community College District and the Foothill De Anza Faculty Association.

Section C. Types of Committees

The Executive Committee may establish such committees as the following: Standing, Special, Ad-hoc, and Joint Committees with Foothill College, the District, Classified Professionals and Student organizations.

Section D. General Duties of Committees

The general duties of all committees shall be to:

- 1. study current College and District policies and/or problems for which that committee was established,
- vote on and present to the Executive Committee recommendations, additions, and actions to be taken by the Executive Committee concerning these policies or problems currently under study, and to
- 3. present an annual oral or written report of the committee's activities to the Executive Committee at the second to the last meeting of the school year. Adhoc committees shall present reports upon the termination of their temporary assignment.

ARTICLE IX. CONSTITUTION ADOPTION, AMENDMENTS, AND BY-LAWS.

Section A. Adoption

Adoption of this Constitution shall be by simple majority of the members voting. Upon adoption, this Constitution shall take effect immediately after the vote has been certified by the Executive Committee and announced by the President.

Section B. Amendments to the Constitution

Commented [MP34]: "Any member of the Academic Senate. . . " Is our "non-tenured faculty must be in Phase 3, Year 4 and part-time faculty with reemployment preference in keeping with this?

Commented [MP35R34]: In reference to VIII. B.

- 1. Initiation of Amendments. Amendments to the Constitution may be initiated in one of the following ways:
 - a. by a singular or group petition to the Executive Committee where onethird of its members must approve the amendment, or
 - b. by submission to the Executive Committee of an amendment on a petition signed by at least ten percent of the Academic Senate membership.
- 2. Notification. The President of the Academic Senate shall notify each member of the Academic Senate of all properly initiated amendments by distributing a written copy of each proposed amendment to all faculty members for study and for voting on at division meetings, or at an Academic Senate meeting.
- 3. Approval. Amendments to the Constitution shall be approved by a simple majority vote of the Academic Senate. Such amendments shall be considered official and part of the Constitution upon certification of the vote by the Executive Committee as published in the meeting minutes.

Section C. By-laws, Adoption or Amendment

By-laws for the Constitution shall be adopted or amended by a two-thirds vote of the Executive Committee at any regular meeting. Proposed by-laws, and any amendments to the same, must be submitted in writing to all members of the Executive Committee at least ten days prior to being voted upon at a meeting of this organization.

Adopted March 1987

Amended May 1993

Amended May 1994

Amended May 1997

Amended May 1999

Amended May 2001

Amended May 2006

Amended June 2015? Amended November 2020